
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

November 10, 2015 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Nov 10 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 10 
Immediately 
following 

Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 17 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Eastwood Elementary School 
 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES  
 

D. Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends the Board accept with 

appreciation recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

E. SPECIAL RECOGNITION 

West Side 7th Grade Big 11 Volleyball Champions 
 

F. MINUTES             

October 27, 2015 – Public Work Session 
October 27, 2015 – Regular Board Meeting 
October 30, 2015 – Special Board Meeting 

  
G. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Public Hearing - A public hearing will be held on proposed Additional Appropriations. 

 
 Resolution  - Rainy Day Fund Additional Appropriation – The Business Office 

recommends adoption of a proposed additional appropriation for the Rainy Day Fund. 
 

 Resolution - General Fund Additional Appropriation – The Business Office 

recommends adoption of a proposed additional appropriation for the General Fund. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed school 

fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 
 



BOARD AGENDA November 10, 2015 
 
 

2 
   

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Communication & Data Department Update 

 
 Student Services Department Update 

 

 Instructional Leadership Department Update 
 

 Grant Approval – The administration recommends approval for the submission of 

the following grant applications to the Elkhart Education Foundation: 
 

First Tech Challenge Robotics Team Initiative from Central High School. 
 

Grasping New Concepts Thru BrainPOP from Pierre Moran Middle School. 
 

Water is Life from Riverview Elementary School. 
 

 Grant Update Report – The administration presents the grant submission and 

award update. 
 

 Board Policy GCBE – The administration presents proposed revisions to Board 

Policy GCBE, Professional Staff Vacations and Holidays, for initial consideration. 
 

 Elkhart Public Library Board Appointment 

 
 Overnight Trip Requests – The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 
 

I. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - The administration recommends approval of conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
 Conference Leaves for Carl D. Perkins Grant – The administration recommends 

approval of conference leave requests in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  October 29, 2015  

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $750.00  

for the girls/boys track team.  This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, 

shoes, equipment, and other miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Patrick Industries 

c/o Todd Cleveland 

107 W. Franklin St. 

P.O. Box 638  

Elkhart, IN 46515 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  October 30, 2015  

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00  

for the girls/boys track team.  This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, 

shoes, equipment, and other miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Cressy & Everett, Inc. Realtors 

c/o Scott Hammontree 

332 N. Ironwood Dr. 

South Bend, IN 4615 

Elkhart, IN 46515 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
October 27, 2015 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Carolyn R. Morris Karen S. Carter 
Present: Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Rob Haworth 
 Shawn Hannon Dawn McGrath 
 Doug Hasler  
   
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board reviewed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:45 p.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, President 
 
 
______________________________
Glenn L. Duncan, Vice President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Secretary 

 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



 1. 

 
 

 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

October 27, 2015 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 

approximately 7:10 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Carolyn R. Morris Karen S. Carter 

Present: Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

 

Roll Call 

President Carolyn Morris called the regular meeting of the Board of 

School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 

Order 

Ms. Morris discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

Protocol  

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives from 
both high schools were welcomed and introduced themselves; Michael 

Foy, a senior from Memorial High School (MHS) and Langston Johnson a 
senior from Central High School (CHS).  Langston Johnson participates 
in basketball, SSAC and culinary discovery club and intends to work 

towards a broadcasting journalism degree in college. He reported on the 
successes of the robotics team, football team, cross country, and 
cheerleaders going to state competition this weekend.  Upcoming 

Central events include a bonfire and talent show.  Michael Foy reported 
as a part of SSAC they are collecting donations through community 
service for a student-to-student scholarship and hope to raise over 

$20,000.  Fall sports have wrapped up with the exception of volleyball; 
the band goes to semi-state this weekend; the speech team goes to 
Plymouth next week; the play “Neverwhere” featuring underground 

London is coming mid-November; and students enjoyed the weeklong 
Fall break. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
October 13, 2015 – Public Work Session 
October 13, 2015 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$5,184,302.20 as shown on the October 27, 2015, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1516-43) 
 

Payment of 
Claims  

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – 

September 30, 2015 and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial 

Report 



 

 2. 

Doug Hasler, executive director of support services, reported the 
following fund loan was made on September 30, 2015: $142,000.00 to 

Transportation Fund from Transportation Bus-Replacement Fund. 
 

Fund Loans 

By unanimous action, the Board approved United Health Care/UMR’s 

proposal to provide network access and provide benefits administration 
services, and MetLife’s proposal to provide fully insured dental benefits.  
Tabled the request to modify benefit eligibility for Elkhart Community 

Schools (ECS) classified employees working less than 30 hours per week 
for 48 hours; and a bus driver spoke in regards to the effect of the 
proposed modification excluding those who work less than 30 hours per 

week would have on his department.  A special meeting will be called in 
the next 48 hours to allow for further investigation into the 
recommendation. 
 

Group Medical 

and Dental 
Insurance 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund.  
(Codified File 1516-44) 
 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the tentative agreement with 
the Elkhart Teacher’s Association (ETA) for a new two year collective 

bargaining agreement. (Codified File 1516-45) 

Tentative 
Agreement 

Shawn Hannon, assistant superintendent of communication and data, 
reported ECS is now using a LinkedIn account for employee/employer 

relationships and employee accomplishments.  In response to Board 
inquiry, she responded all postings would be reviewed and approved by 
the employee.  Also, a Board member highlighted a recent article on AP 

classes published in The Elkhart Truth.  On the subject of data, Shawn 
reported the state has not released the ISTEP test scores and quoted 
the following statements from Governor Pence on the scores: “We grade 

our children every week and we can grade our schools every year, but 
those grades should fairly reflect the efforts of our students and 
teachers as we transition to higher standards and a new exam.” and “… 

legislation is currently being crafted to ensure that test results will not 
negatively impact teacher evaluations or performance bonuses this 
year.”  In response to Board inquiry, she responded various formats 

were used for ISTEP testing including technology-enhanced items. In 
response to Board inquiry, she responded many schools prepared to 
administer ISTEP+ online were switched by IDOE to a paper 

administration due to a technology glitch which impacted special 
education and ESL students for whom questions are read aloud. 
 

Department 
Report 

Tony England, assistant superintendent of student services, commented 
on the recently awarded Safe Haven Grant providing for the 

development of protocol regarding bullying with the assistance of Mary 
Yoder Holsopple; and a group is attending a meeting in Colorado on 
anti-bullying in November.  An agreement with Oaklawn will provide 

$15,000 each for 19 schools for Positive Behavior Instruction and 
Support. 

Department 
Report 



 

 3. 

Dr. Dawn McGrath, deputy superintendent, reported a strategic plan is 
due by the end of the year as a requirement of the Technical Innovate 

Grant received.  She also presented the news video aired by WSBT on 
the Fall Into Reading Program at Roosevelt STEAM Academy held during 
Fall break.  Sixty students from Title I schools around the district 

participated in hands-on activities and objectives that incorporated 
math, science and reading. Some of the activities included making play-
doh, building Lego bridges and constructing buildings from 

marshmallows and spaghetti.  Holly Conley, program coordinator, 
commented on the success of the event and the future of the program. 
 

Department 
Report 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of the 
following grants to: 
 

Department of Homeland Security for Fiscal Year 2016 Secured 
School Safety Grant from ECS. 
 

Gametime for Playground Matching Grant from ECS. 
 
Elkhart Education Foundation (EEF) for Wireless Interactive 

Whiteboard Systems for 2nd grade from Eastwood. 
 

Elkhart Education Foundation for Project CLICK from Mary 
Beck. 
 

Elkhart Education Foundation for Maxing Out Our Education 
from Mary Daly. 

 

(Codified File 1516-46) 
 

Superintendent Haworth commented on the success of the EEF providing 

grants to the district.  Board members commented on the hard work and 
dedication of the organization and the Boling family. 
 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following overnight trip 
requests: cheerleaders from Elkhart Central High School to travel to 
Indianapolis, IN on October 30 and 31 for IASP cheer championship; 

motorcycle & power equipment technology – Hot Rodders of Tomorrow 
team from EACC to travel to Indianapolis, IN on December 8 thru 12, to 
compete in Hot Rodders of Tomorrow Engine Challenge; and, choir from 

Central to travel to Ft. Wayne, IN on January 15 and 16, 2016 for All-
State Choir rehearsal and performance. 
 

Overnight Trip 
Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the October 27, 2015 listing and the October 27, 2015 

Addendum. (Codified File 1516-47) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 



 

 4. 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests for 
the Carl D. Perkins Grant in accordance with Board policy for staff 

members as recommended by the administration on the October 27, 
2015 listing. (Codified File 1516-48)  Dave Benak, director of career & 
technical education, at the Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC) presented 

the Board with the EACC conference leave categories.  In response to 
Board inquiry, EACC conference leave requests will identify the categories 
met in each request. 

 

` 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

Superintendent’s administrative appointment of Rebecca Crocker, 
assistant principal at Monger, effective October 14, 2015 

 

Administrative 
Appointment 

Maternity leave of absence for certified staff member Jennie Siri, 
speech pathologist at Cleveland, beginning 10/27/15 and ending 

10/30/15. 
 

Certified 
Maternity 

Leave 
 

Regular employment of the following twenty-one (21) classified 

employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 
periods, on dates indicated: 

Claudine Anderson - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 10/27/15 

Ron Barr, Jr. - custodian at Bristol/Eastwood, 10/19/15  
Lori Beber - paraprofessional at Central, 10/19/15  
Priscilla Brown - paraprofessional at Riverview10/23/15  

Nicole Cantzler - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 10/9/15  
Angela Gates - bus helper at Transportation, 10/22/15  
Tonya Gates - bus helper at Transportation, 10/22/15 

Amanda Goodknight - paraprofessional at Cleveland,  
  10/19/15 
Crystal Howard - lunch paraprofessional at Pinewood, 

  10/24/15  
April Hunt - food service at Cleveland, 10/8/15  
Kysidra Jackson - lunch paraprofessional at Beardsley,  

  10/21/15 
Linda Jones - unassigned bus driver at Transportation,   
  10/28/15 

Heather Martin - paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 10/9/15  
Michelle Miller - lunch paraprofessional at Woodland, 10/8/15  

Margaret Schnippel - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 10/27/15 
Deborah Sheppard - food service at Beck, 10/9/15 
Shawna Torok - food service at Woodland, 10/28/15 

Jennifer Weldy - nurse at Hawthorne, 10/6/15 
Beverly Witcher - unassigned bus driver at Transportation,  
  10/23/15 

Teresa Woodley - food service at Beck, 10/9/15 
Dawn Yoder - food service at West Side, 10/16/15 
 

Classified 

Employment 



 

 5. 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees 
effective on dates indicated:   

Laura Cichoracki- secretary at ESC, 10/15/15 
Casey Lott - paraprofessional at Eastwood, 10/14/15 
Steve Mason Jr. - custodian at Roosevelt, 10/6/15 

 

Classified 
Resignation 

Parental leave for the following two (2) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Marina Allen – unassigned bus driver at Transportation,   
  beginning 10/12/15 and ending 12/18/15 
Rigoberto Carvajal – paraprofessional at Hawthorne,  

  beginning 12/7/15 and ending 12/18/15. 
 

Parental Leave 
 

Retirement of Paula Watson, secretary at ESC, effect 10/27/15 

with 29 years of service. 
 

Retirement 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved Superintendent Haworth’s 

request to advertise for an Appropriations hearing. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 

Tentatively set Special Meeting for Friday, October 30th. From the Board 

 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:15 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



 
MINUTES OF THE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

October 30, 2015 
 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 10:30 
a.m. 

Time/Place 

Board Members Carolyn R. Morris Karen S. Carter 
Present: Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

 

Roll Call 

President Carolyn Morris called the meeting to order and the pledge was 

recited. 

 

Call to 
Order/Pledge 

By unanimous action, the Board untabled the Motion recommending a 

change in benefit eligibility for employees working less than 30 hours per 

week. 

 

Group Medical 
and Dental 
Insurance 
 

By unanimous action, the Board withdrew the Motion recommending a 

change in benefit eligibility for employees working less than 30 hours per 

week. 
 

Group Medical 
and Dental 
Insurance 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a Motion to grandfather current 

classified employees who are enrolled in the benefits plan, working less 

than 30 hours, into the District insurance plan for one additional year.  

The cost increase associated with this motion to be absorbed by the 

District.  A bus driver audience member thanked the Board on behalf of 

the transportation department for taking additional time to review the 

motion and for an additional year to learn more about options.  Board 

members thanked the insurance committee for their time and efforts.  
 

Group Medical 
and Dental 
Insurance 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 10:50 a.m. Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
___________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, President 
 
 
______________________________
Glenn L. Duncan, Vice President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Secretary 

 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

TO:  Board of School Trustees 

  Dr. Robert Haworth 

 

FROM:  Douglas A. Hasler 

 

SUBJECT: Additional Appropriation Resolutions 

 

Following discussion in the last Board meeting, notice of proposed additional appropriations (one for 

General Fund, one for Rainy Day Fund) was published in local newspapers on October 30th.  As stated in the 

notice, Board action on the proposed additional appropriations will take place in the November 10th Board 

meeting. 

 

The proposed additional appropriation for the Rainy Day Fund is in the amount of $2,900,000, and is 

necessary to pay for the additional payroll cost that is occurring in 2015 due to the shift in the start of the 

2015-16 school year. 

 

The proposed additional appropriation for the General Fund is in the amount of $1,580,000, and is 

necessary to pay for the cost of stipends that have been approved for certified staff (and which will be 

proposed for administrative and classified staff). 

 

There are available cash reserves in the Rainy Day Fund, and the General Fund sufficient to cover the 

additional appropriations that are proposed. 

 

I will be recommending Board approval of these additional appropriations in the November 10th Board 

meeting.  If you have any questions concerning these matters prior to Tuesday night’s Board meeting, 

please contact me at 262-5563. 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION 

 
 
Whereas, it has been determined that it is now necessary to appropriate more money than was 
originally appropriated in the annual budget; now, therefore: 
 
 Be it resolved by the Board of School Trustees of Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, 
that for the expenses of the taxing unit the following additional sums of money are hereby appropriated 
out of the funds named and for the purposes specified, subject to laws governing the same: 
 
 
Fund Name:  Rainy Day  Fund  AMOUNT   AMOUNT APPROVED 
     REQUESTED   BY FISCAL BODY 
 
Major Budget Classification: 
10000 Personal Services  $2,900,000_______  $2,900,000_______ 
20000 Supplies   $_______________  $_______________ 
30000 Other Services & Charges $_______________  $_______________ 
40000 Capital Outlays   $_______________  $_______________ 
50000 Debt Obligations  $_______________  $_______________ 
 
TOTAL for Rainy Day Fund  $2,900,000_______  $2,900,000_______ 
 
 
******************************************************************************** 
Adopted this 10th day of November, 2015. 
 
 NAY      AYE 
 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 
 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

Secretary 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION 

 
 
Whereas, it has been determined that it is now necessary to appropriate more money than was 
originally appropriated in the annual budget; now, therefore: 
 
 Be it resolved by the Board of School Trustees of Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, 
that for the expenses of the taxing unit the following additional sums of money are hereby appropriated 
out of the funds named and for the purposes specified, subject to laws governing the same: 
 
 
Fund Name:  General  Fund  AMOUNT   AMOUNT APPROVED 
     REQUESTED   BY FISCAL BODY 
 
Major Budget Classification: 
10000 Personal Services  $1,580,000_______  $1,580,000_______ 
20000 Supplies   $_______________  $_______________ 
30000 Other Services & Charges $_______________  $_______________ 
40000 Capital Outlays   $_______________  $_______________ 
50000 Debt Obligations  $_______________  $_______________ 
 
TOTAL for General Fund   $1,580,000_______  $1,580,000_______ 
 
 
******************************************************************************** 
Adopted this 10th day of November, 2015. 
 
 NAY      AYE 
 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 

_________________________   _________________________ 
 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

Secretary 













Board of School Trustees Grant Submission and Award Update 
November 10, 2015 

 

Grant Title Grantee Organization Amount 

Requested 
Award Status Amount of 

Award 

Awarded Grants 
    

Indiana School Counseling 

Conference 
Indiana Youth Institute $448.00 Grant Awarded 

9/30/2015 
$448.00 

Department of Homeland 

Security Safety Grant-

Memorial High School 

Department of Homeland 

Security 
$50,000.00 Funds Reimbursed 

8/7/2015 
$50,000.00 

Indiana Safe Haven Indiana Criminal Justice 

Institute 
$20,000.00 Grant Awarded 

8/4/2015 
$20,000.00 

Time Saving Strategies to 

Integrate SLP Interventions 

Conference 

Indiana Youth Institute $399.43 Grant Awarded $399.43 

eLearning in Classrooms Indiana Department of 

Education 
$30,000.00 Grant Awarded 

8/2015 
$30,000.00 

Total 8/1/2015-11/10/2015 
   

$100,847.43 
Total 11/10/2015 

   

$100,847.43 

Approved Grants  
(Funds Approved) 
*Annual District Grant Applications for Program Funding (Title, Department of Education, Special Education) 
Perkins Secondary CTE Grant 
 

Indiana Department of 

Education 
$660,866.09 Approved $660,866.09 

Non-English Speaking Program Indiana Department of 

Education 
$399,605.64 Approved $399,605.64 

Title III Indiana Department of 

Education 
$358,221.25 Approved $358,221.25 

Title I Indiana Department of 

Education 
$3,966,720.08 Approved $3,966,720.08 

Federal Grant FY2016 Part 

B611 (ages 3-21) 
Department of Education $3,101,095.00 Approved $3,101,095.00 

Federal Grant FY2016 Part 

B619 (ages 3-5) 
Department of Education $111,682.00 Approved $111,682.00 

Total To Date 11/10/2015 
*2015-2016 School Year 

   

$8,598,190.06 

Pending Notification 
    

College and Career Readiness 

Grant 
Learn More Indiana 

Career Ready Contest 
$1,000 

  

One School at a Time WNDU/Martin’s 

Supermarket 
$1,000 

  

Band Grant Fenders Foundation 3 Instruments 
  

Getting In Touch with Literacy 

Conference 
Indiana Youth Institute $750.00 

  

Incentives for LIFE and Jr. LIFE 

Students 
Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$1,000.00 

  

K-4 Engineering and 

Programming Skills - Roosevelt 
Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$2,635.35 

  

Skills USA Competition 

Membership - Career Center 
Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$2,000.00   



Board of School Trustees Grant Submission and Award Update 
November 10, 2015 

West Side Projects: Dog treats 

for humane society, books for 

elementary schools, and flags 

for veterans’ headstones in local 

cemeteries 

Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$243.75   

Central and Memorial Student 

Athletic Fee Assistance 
Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$4,800.00   

Partnership with 5Star for 

athlete teamwork and character 

building – Memorial High 

School 

Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$2,000.00   

West Side Project Lead the Way 

VEX Robotics 
Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$1078.87   

Instrument Specialists for small 

group lessons at Central High 

School 

Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$4,900.00   

EL Staff iPads - Beardsley Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$3,819.04   

Outdoor Classroom at Cleveland 

Elementary 
Lowe’s Tool Box for 

Education 
$5,000.00 

  

Lunch for Central Orchestra at 

Midwest International Band and 

Orchestra Clinic 

Teacher’s Credit Union $1,836.00 
  

Lunch for Central Orchestra at 

Midwest International Band and 

Orchestra Clinic 

First Source Foundation $1,836.00 
  

Lunch for chaperones at Purdue 

Clinic - Central High School 
Target $650.00 

  

Bus Driver Bully Prevention 

Training 
Safe Fleet United 

Against Bullying 
$10,000.00 

  

Lunch for Central Orchestra 

during Midwest International 

Band and Orchestra Clinic 

Target Field Trip $945.00 
  

Field Trip-Mary Beck 

Kindergarten Zoo 
Target $1,053.00 

  

Memorial High School Band-

Lesson Subsidy 
Community Foundation 

of Elkhart County-

Municipal Band 

$4,000.00 
  

New musical education 

technology in Central Band 

room 

Community Foundation 

of Elkhart County-

Municipal Band 

$8,382.09 
  

Expand College and Career 

Readiness efforts 
College and Career 

Readiness 
$1,000.00 

  

Secured Safety School Grant Department of 

Homeland Security 
$50,000.00 

  

Playground Grant-Eastwood, 

Cleveland, Osolo 
Gametime $125,000.00 

  

Project CLICK -Mary Beck  Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$4,800.00 

  

IWB - Eastwood 2nd Grade Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$4,126.96 

  



Board of School Trustees Grant Submission and Award Update 
November 10, 2015 

Moby Max - Mary Daly Elkhart Education 

Foundation 
$3,261.57 

  

Reading Camp - Bristol United Way $1,500.00 
  

Grants Not Received 
    

Library Grant James Patterson Pledge 

to Libraries 
$9,000.00 

  

Withdrawn or Not Submitted 
    

 







CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 

Public Library Board Member 

Form for Class I Libraries  

           State Form 31873 (R4/11-05) 

 

I/We,      Carolyn  R. Morris     , 
name(s) of official(s) 

      President      , of 
title(s) 

   Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools    
name of appointing authority(s) 

of            Elkhart           , Indiana, 
            municipal corporation(s) 

hereby certify that on the  10th  day of  November , 2015         I/we have duly appointed 

 

  Clarence Thomas     to the   Elkhart   Public  

 

Library Board for a term of eight months, said term to end the  30th  day of   June , 2016     .  

 

Witness my hand and seal this  10th  day of   November  , 2015         . 

 

              
           signature of appointing official or attesting officer 
 

              
        (additional line for signatures if joint appointments occur) 
 

OATH OF OFFICE 

 

STATE    OF     INDIANA ) 

                    )  SS 

   COUNTY) 

 

I,       , do hereby solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution  
                 name of appointee 
of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Indiana and to the best of my ability I will faithfully and 

impartially discharge the duties and accept the responsibilities of a member of the Library Board of the   

     Public Library, and that I will observe and obey all the laws relating to said 

office now in force or which may hereafter be enacted during my term of service, so help me God. 

 

              
                   signature of appointee 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this    day of     ,       . 

My commission expires 

              

File one copy with library, one copy with circuit court clerk within 30 days of taking oath. 

IC 36-12-2-19 states: 
“An appointing authority under this chapter shall issue to each appointee to a library board a signed certificate of appointment. Within 

ten (10) days after the receipt of the certificate of appointment, the appointee shall take an oath of office, before any 

person authorized by law to administer the oath, to the effect that he will faithfully discharge his duties to the best 
of his ability. The appointee shall file the certificate of appointment and the endorsed oath with the records of the 

public library, which shall be preserved as a public record.” 

See also IC 5-4-1-1.2, IC 5-4-1-4 

** If to complete an unexpired term, insert the correct length of time. 

















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  November 10, 2015 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

b. Settlement Agreement – We recommend the approval of a settlement agreement related to the use 

of sick leave. 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following employee: 

 

Robert Weber   Beck/ENL 

Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  11/6/15 

 

Andrew Wood   Central/Assistant Principal 

Began: 8/1/06   Resign:  1/22/16 

 

d. Change to Maternity Leave – We recommend a change to a maternity leave for the following 

employee: 

 

Meg Brewer   PACE/Speech Pathologist 

Begin: 4/14/15   End:  6/1/16 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

a. New Employees – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

 

Semage Amalnathan  Pinewood/Food Service 

Began:  9/2/15   PE:  11/4/15 

 

Debra Baker   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/8/15   PE:  11/10/15 

 

Nina Bayes   Daly/Paraprofessional 

Began:  8/31/15   PE:  11/9/15 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Jammie Fields   Beardsley/Lunch Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/1/15   PE:  11/9/15 

 

Melissa Frederick  Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began:  8/31/15   PE:  11/9/15 

 

Ranesha Halliburton  Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/3/15   PE:  11/5/15 

 

Dolly Lozano   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/8/15   PE:  PE:  11/10/15 

 

Elizabeth Nutt   Bristol/Food Service 

Began:  8/31/15   PE:  10/28/15 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Andrea Bussard  Beardsley/Food Service 

Began:  10/20/14  Resign:  11/6/15 

 

Amy Franks   Memorial/Custodian 

Began:  6/15/13   Resign:  11/13/15 

 

Rick Hayford   Transportation/Unassigned Bus Driver 

Began:  8/6/15   Resign:  10/23/15 

 

Holly Kerstin   Woodland/Paraprofessional 

Began:  12/7/12   Resign:  10/30/15 

 

Laura Lucchese-Urban Bristol/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/12   Resign:  11/13/15 

 

Carolyn Miller   Transportation/Unassigned Bus Driver 

Began:  8/24/05   Resign:  11/13/15 

 

Drew Morris   Building Services/Custodian 

Began:  4/20/15   Resign:  10/30/15 

 

Kirstin Truman  Monger/Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/30/14   Resign:  11/6/15 

 

 

c. Personal Leave – We recommend the approval of an unpaid personal leave for the following 

classified employee: 

 

Peggy Caston   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Begin:  11/23/15  End:  12/4/15 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

d. Retirement – We  report the retirement of the following classified employees: 

 

Brenda Ellsworth  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/27/84   Retire:  01/01/16 

    34 Years of Service 

 

Mary Jo Raab   Career Center/Secretary 

Began: 6/22/04   Retire:  01/8/16 

    11 Years of Service 

 

Donald Swanson   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/21/02   Retire:  01/4/16 

    13 Years of Service 

 

 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  November 10, 2015 

 

Addendum to Personnel Report 

 

 

Certified 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment: 

 

David  Bird Program Supervisor/School Without Walls   Eff: 11/11/15 

 

Gail Draper Supervisor/Early College Program  Eff:  7/23/15 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Classified 

 

a. Change to Retirement – We report a change in retirement of the following classified employee: 

 

Harriet Lewis   West Side/Paraprofessional 

Began:  9/25/00   Retire:  12/4/15 

    15 Years of Service 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Music
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Science
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Wenger
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Track
	Gift Acceptance - MHS track 2.pdf
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Track

	Minutes - Work Session October 27 2015
	Minutes - Regular Meeting October 27 2015
	Minutes - Special October 30 2015
	ECS Internam Memo Document
	Additional Appropriation Resolution (11.10.15) (Rainy Day)
	Additional Appropriation Resolution (11.10.15) (General Fund)
	Fundraisers
	Grant - EEF Pierre Moran Middle School
	Grant - EFF ECS Robotics
	Grant - EFF Riverview
	Grant Submission Award Update Revised
	Board Policy GCBE
	Library Board Appointment Elkhart
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum

